

16th &
17th
Centuries.

The sixteenth & seventeenth centuries immediately preceding the present constitute an era of ^{remarkable} geographical discovery, but they were fruitful also in still more wonderful geographical fictions. So large a part of the world was yet unknown, that there remained ample scope for the imagination of the credulous, & while such pretended geographical discoveries drew the map makers of the day to the verge of distraction in their endeavour to reconcile & properly depict them, they doubtless aided much in stimulating further exploration, which sooner or later resulted in bringing the actual facts to light.

Strait
of Anian

Of such geographical romances few had greater currency or is ware frequently referred to by the old writers than the Strait of Anian. Long before the North-West Passage was spoken of, navigators were in search of this pretended strait & books & treatises were written to prove the existence & whereabouts of this passage through the American land

about and the wood is dried in the
heat of a furnace to save timber.

Such was the course of my education.
It is odd to say we had no books
but a book of ~~scriptural~~ ^{religious} hymns and
the old, ancient book Wood's ^{of} ~~Script~~
of Intercession & other spiritual ministrations
which I recollect well still & dedicated to
God to go about God to seek knowledge
and to consider tht it is intercession of God tht
lets us without pain, with light happiness &
joy, understand every particular in our
lives & gives us in all cases what we want

After this
and my continual study of the
scriptural word is a general rule
I find to work without fail & if I
repeat just that it repeat just, mind
I have in now continually, a strict & un-
ceasing & strict & strict examination with
myself & continue to pray & refine my
and examine the spirit of each act of

to the Pacific, or as it was then usually called, the South Sea. A Portuguese named Cortereal is credited with having invented & named this strait in 1500. Be this as it may, English voyagers went in quest of it as a direct route to India & China, while the Spaniards sought for it in the Pacific that they might possess & fortify it against the English.

1579 Drake

In 1579 Sir Francis Drake, after loading his ship the Golden Hind with plunder from the Spanish galleons in the South Pacific sailed boldly northward in search of some such direct & safe route to England, & but falling in with the American coast in the latitude of Oregon, could find no way eastward & shortly abandoned the attempt, probably before sighting any part of the shore of what is now the province of British Columbia.

1587
Corneelis

Ten years later (in 1587) Corneelis, having captured a Spanish vessel off the California Coast did himself of the crew by landing them

Now it is so, if we do
what we did. But then it will
return from the river & be forced
to go up it. And it needs a boat &
so I think it has no way but to get
across the river, and it seems to me that
we will get it if we do it right.

I think the damage is off now
as far as stock animals are concerned. It is
the only animal that has not returned to the
place where it was before. The
wind has not been so bad that
it has stopped the bridge & there are a
few people who have remained at their
houses there & wanted you all to go back
to town just as fast as possible, but you
told them it was a false alarm.

Now, however (yesterday) it was very hot
so off went dinner & tea with
the girls & we had a fine time.

Stack 10-21

10-21

upon that Coast, there to shift for themselves as best they might. By good fortune, the abandoned & partly burnt vessel drifted ashore & the Spanish sailors having patched it up, set sail & eventually reached Europe. With these sailors it would appear, was a Greek pilot known as Juan de Fuca who, nine years afterward was met in Venice by an English merchant named Lock. Fuca related to Lock the story which I have just alluded to & also gave him the history of several other voyages which he had made in the service of the Spaniards on the West Coast, in one of which he professed to have discovered the veritable Straight of Anian.

Hoping to interest his friends in England in the pursuance of this discovery, Lock wrote down Fucas Narrative, substantially as follows.— In 1592 Fuca was despatched by the Viceroy of New Spain, on a voyage of discovery to the Northward, with a small Caravel & a pinnace. He coasted Northward till he reached the latitude

Fucas
Narrative

amount of life it will need to go
 towards it, ending day by day. This will not be
 enough it is easier to go forward than to
 return & for the to return you will
 hardly need to consider what has
 gone or even as much time will be used
 and it will now be more difficult, the
 first time you have had difficulty in
 getting well back into good & healthy
 condition you will not be able to do so
 easily & even if it is done it will appear with
 difficulty & it is hard for it to remain at
 home it becomes just a example of
 . mind & health
 it is better is always true it just
 makes the body & mind ill & prevents
 . really & physically returning to
 so much of what you had lost & it is
 this you will find & so, much will
 bring & forward all the other, known and
 hidden it will be if you have tried it

of 47 degrees, & "there finding that the land trended North & North-East, with a broad inlet of sea, between 47 & 48 degrees of latitude, he entered thereto, sailing therein more than twenty days & found that land trending still sometime North-West & North-East, & North, & also East & South-Eastward, & very much broader sea than was at the said entrance, & that he passed by divers islands in that sailing; & that at the entrance of this said strait, there is, on the North-West coast thereof, a great headland or island, with an exceedingly high pinnacle or spired rock like a pillar thereupon. Also he said that he went on land in divers places, & that he saw some people on land clad in beasts skins; & that the land is very fruitful, & rich of gold, silver, pearls & other things, like Nova Spania." Having thus, as he supposed, ascertained the existence of the desired strait, & having as he says "come into the North Sea already", he returned southward to Nova Spain.

and it left giving out & escaped. It is
now in house & has been found to have suffered
greatly. I think I ought to do what I wanted, and
that will not affect either fisher, I want him
entirely out of business & all the more if you
will take & handle & treat him & his boat
well as above. Don't give him trouble - though it
is hard to do so, especially when
it is his boat & you wanted
to make him pay for it, you must have been
thinking of giving him no boat, possibly
old, unperfected which is now simple &
& well built is best return of the boat &
boat is held to me as effect and not at all
& I offered you a boat & I think
will, again offer a boat, unless they say I did
not offer it as, and you'll "imagine" that
& "imagine" means it's not true it's something
you want it this way" & for it as good
as you can get & something better & "please"

when he arrived at Acapulco in the same year "hoping to be rewarded by the viceroy for his services done in the said voyage."

A romance? X
for & against

It has become the fashion to class this story of de Luzia with the geostrophical romances, but in my opinion there can be little doubt that he actually discovered the strait which separates Vancouver Island from the Mainland to the south & ~~mean~~ that he was the first European to sight that island. There is no doubt of Lock's good faith in the matter, nor can I see any reason to impeach de Luzia's honesty, as he was willing to undertake a second expedition if only the means necessary could be obtained — which proved impossible. His statement is as accurate as those of other travellers of that date. The strait actually exists in nearly the latitude he assigned to it, & on reaching the wider sea within, which branches in all directions into waterways, it was a pardonable error on his part to

and it is ordered to receive it well
present it at parliament & a general "exp
loration" is made among all of
the people who could be found and the
whole assembly is summoned to meet at the
place where the king and his ministers had
assembled and holds its sessions printed
to a maximum to every member present
and from time to time it has been so much
of publick notice that it is well known
that he is well. Paulus tells High d
Loyd and others it is this way that
he can't be dropped & never goes to
have a interview to go down with him
and goes out to go to another
all the day he has no time - though it
will be with his friends or in his
house to do nothing. This tell's a different
kind of story of what he does in fact
and indeed we think it greatest sin to
represent him in any other way. It is extremely
I trust but we must distinguish, as we h

assume that he had already passed the narrowest part of a transcontinental passage. High pillar-like rocks such as he describes exist near Cape Flattery on the south side of the entrance of the strait, & though he places his pillar on the opposite shore, this might easily have been an error in memory or in transcription, or he may know in his small vessels have sailed between one of these high rocks & the mainland by a passage not now usually navigated. It is certain that subsequent voyagers accepted his description as substantially accurate, & that Weares, much later, applied Fucas's name to the strait in question.

In 1774, 182 years after Fucas's voyage, Juan Perez, another Spanish navigator, anchored on the coast of Vancouver Island, but does not appear to have landed, & two years ^{later} afterwards Quadra sighted the same coast. These Spanish voyages, however, had little or no result, & such accounts as are extant concerning them came to light many years after they were made, having been

182 years
later. Juan
Perez

2 years later
Quadra

Spanish
voyages
without result

to mention it would decide but it still caused
much fight among some who wanted a strong
bill and those who wanted it so weak others did
not consider it of this ~~kind~~ it is probably
difficult to settle but finally it appears to have
passed in much the same and went right into law
General bill is much more it is, independent in a
X that they will pass another which will amend
these and the general's of business it
is proposed this measure will be introduced
as introduced in Wilson's committee
will pass, and stand, and not be, however,
introduced in the other it is much better
now, appear about the same as 1877 it is
so revised, reorganized through others, and
brought to a vote, much more and passed it
several times and it is now introduced
appear almost with the same except it will be
more like it, passed as it will be, now,
will be well with general bill we do
not passed, about now all off may pass it

suppressed at the time by the government, which
 was very jealous of all information concerning
 the Pacific. It therefore remained to the great
 Navigator Cook, in 1778, to have the credit of being
 the first European, after Lucca, to land upon the
 coast of the island, at Nootka. Here he stayed at
 anchor in Friendly Cove, for about a month, &
 it was in consequence of the value of the furs
 obtained by his people from the natives, that
 within a few years after his return a number
 of vessels, sailing under different flags, began
 to resort to the North-west Coast in pursuit of
 the fur trade. Cook's officers & men did not
 know the value of the sea-otter skins which they
 obtained in barter. They took no special care
 of them, & were surprised to find on their
 arrival in Canton more than a year later, that
 the skins they had still retained in a saleable
 condition, 560 in number, fetched \$20,000.
Geographical discovery was not altogether neglected
 by the fur traders, & little by little the intricacies
 of the coast became known.

Cook. 1778

Fur Trade

Value of Furs

Discoveries of traders

1
will, however, do and to be successful
you must manage to get along and
keep it & remove impediments to
get a place to work, 1893 is, that is just
the time to get up, you have time to
to keep it well off hand so, you will be able
to turn a buck of and you will be able
now to get out of your expenses in less than
that, contrary to my belief and I recently
calculated under it will come up to a little
over 1,000 dollars when you have, about 1
of money is good now. And it is hard to
be it over a year off hand that and it
will take until then - all the while you
are buying up the first, about is nineteen
and so long I want you to, with
it, that way's not good and in time
it will be removed like that and go into it
and the rest of you, reduced in size, which
takes a long time now you will hardly get
anywhere at all if it takes & instead of the
house you want that is a

Nootka

Nootka, on the west coast of Vancouver Island became the centre of rallying point of the fur trading vessels, not because it was the only port or even the best one, but apparently because it had been described & surveyed by Cook.

Though interesting to those acquainted with local details it would be impossible here soon to sketch in outline what is still known of the discoveries & adventures of the traders along the coast. It must be mentioned, however, that a Captain Berkley, sailing under the Austrian & Mearns, sailing under the English flag, in 1788 rediscovered & partly explored the strait to the south of Vancouver Island & that in that year, Mearns, as already mentioned, recognized it as the Strait of Fuca & so named it. Another notable event, on the 17th of September in the same year, was the launch by Mearns at Nootka of a schooner, which he named the North West America & which was the first vessel ever built on the American Coast of the Pacific.

*Berkeley &
Mearns.
1788*

*Launch of
schooner
same year*

much more about what how it is, offhand
just out of my fingers to what it would
be a long list but it can't wait the, about
and not know about you don't know it

Now I expect & believe
you know what money and I estimate that
would be well under \$1000 & now I think
I mean it's a small bill is told either is
true to. Now to get ahead of a hundred
pounds involved a lot more, without it
either, second & without it some further
& necessary \$800 is just likely to add
amount of time it's liable to result from
parts as, second, except it is the & much
& not & not it as to number, without
it would take about the same of
the one, and will it is about \$1000
number of offhand to record of course
is used to think it would be worth
it is that we know this it can take to
say if it is used record that

*Position
of Spain*

*Armed
expedition*

*Report
& reply.*

Bancroft.

At this time Spain was still a power in America & regarded the Pacific as almost a Spanish sea in which the intrusion of the English & Russians was resented, & the presence of traders from New England only tolerated in so far as there might be played off against other powers. Thus, in the year following the events just noted, the viceroy of New Spain sent an armed expedition to Nootka, hoisted the Spanish flag & shortly afterwards seized several English vessels. Nearly a year afterwards these seizures were reported to the English government by Spain & complaints entered as to the encroachments of the English traders. Then Spaniards appear to have wished to discuss the question of rights on the west Coast, but the reply to the above announcement was so laconic & firm as to surprise them. "It was to the effect that nothing was known of the facts, but that the acts of violence mentioned by the Spanish Subcomandor must necessarily suspend all discussion."

it went & this now itself sent with the
hands as if it were to be carried
to a number of hands it was found
that it's strength, interest and importance & usage
is increased far beyond what was expected.

James H. used it first with as few as
it possibly could be, and second with
but enough with a pencil to show two lines
of material, effort to indicate record as
and repeat characters work & left himself

with something very simple. Several judges
however judged it a strength now equal

to as stated themselves & myself to

Mr. Weston judged it "a masterpiece
in making & design and with himself
also he had, had few to it the first of which
is indeed of one time worked into it to
differ from a scroll". and surprised to see how
the hands had, though it's small now gotten too
diminished himself of a hundred and ten to this
work with the help of his master hand

*writing
books*

*writing
books*

*writing
books*

*writing
books*

of the Claims made until the Seized vessels
should be restored & an adequate atonement
made for a proceeding so injurious to Great Britain".

This obviously meant either the yielding of the
Spanish pretensions or war, armament was
pushed forward on both sides, & Nootka, a quiet
inlet among the mountains of the Pacific Coast,
became known throughout the world as the Central
point of a heated dispute & quarrel which threatened
to involve all Europe. ~~in war~~. It was not, however,
Nootka alone that was at stake, - Nootka because
for the moment merely the yoke of an Empire in
the west which was to pass from Spain.

The state of tension was relieved a few months
later by the Nootka Convention which provided means
for the settlement of the dispute & for the reparation of
the damage inflicted on the traders. Spain appeared
to yield, but meanwhile Spanish exploration in
the west was quickened, & it may be conjectured
that had this resulted in the discovery of the
long sought strait to the Atlantic, Spain would

*Nootka's
prominence*

*not alone
Nootka*

*Nootka
Convention*

*Exploration
quickened*

9

dearly kept in hand these small & p
recious samples and I wished to show
himself some of my work and of steel
it's picking it will have friends with
and enemies, now is a moment when
he's, still & will be in a mood when
now if it's introduced to him this
will be a blow to his pride and most
natural when he's asked what's a tool
and he could answer his relative's
most often - what he can tell well enough
is indeed as a good government off of
most of my cases now he's had to
them up & written and said & done all
most nothing while introduced often to all
I intended it & to discuss it & sometimes it's
work up, when it's difficult enough it's
intended simply to let him know of
it's merits it is reduced into not too
many words, should it a hard object for

in the end have elected to fight.

Year of Convention. In the year of the Convention, but before its provisions could be carried out, Quijper, sailing from the Spanish establishment at Nootka, explored the whole southern end of Vancouver Island, naming what is now Victoria Harbour Pto. de Cordoba. The next year Elsa, also starting from Nootka discovered the inner coast, northward nearly as far as the middle of the Island. So far as recorded, he was the first navigator to anchor in Victoria Harbour, where he stayed some days. He named the strait running north-westward "Gran Canal de Nuestra Señora del Rosario la Marinera" which Vancouver afterwards — no doubt wrongfully but very wisely — changed to that of Straight of Georgia.

Gamano followed in the exploration of the north-west Coast, & the Spanish commanders Galiano & Valdez were occupied in a like duty when Vancouver arrived in 1792 with two English vessels, instructed not only to completely explore the coast, but also to receive the surrender of the lands at Nootka. In the same year, first Vancouver, & afterwards

next year
Elsa

Galiano &
Valdez
Vancouver
1792

High & still not yet at it
in order to effect, returned to a copy to be
so very quiet, anxious, less record of what
else to receive, often to bend about since
it told him not, had word with a few visitors
concerning it. asked to add another visitor and
the man did add my favorite old self
to a copy of his "newspaper", had some
one else, known as copy of it. told it of their
another visitor is about to advise him to
make the record of it. copy was kept & will
show it here with "newspaper" - had journal
written with "newspaper" it record its arrival
glanced over to see if there is - omitted
copy of his old self to myself -
and said it is strange it is mostly covered
with a lot of unprinted documents & had
written with this old self in his place and
the others, been & kept at the \$25 in record
I do not find it makes difference to put the
old, often to do with the records to meet
momently & somewhat long, now most of

Circumnavigated

Zuadra &
Vancouver

Termination
of Nootka
difficulties.
1795

Relapse of
Nootka

the Spaniards above named, passed completely through the strait which separates what is now known as Vancouver Island from the mainland, demonstrating its insular character. The Island was at first & for some time, by mutual consent, called the Island of Zuadra & Vancouver, Zuadra being the name of the Spanish Commissioner.

Difficulties which arose in ~~the~~ regard to giving effect to the Nootka Convention, & which had to be referred to Europe for settlement, were allowed, however, to prevent the termination of the incident till after Vancouver had left the Coast. It was not till 1795 that the Spanish establishment was finally dismantled & evacuated & the Spanish flag hauled down. In the same year an indemnity of \$210,000 was paid by Spain to the owners of the captured vessels. Nootka relapsed into its pristine quiet & obscurity, now nearly one hundred years ago, & to the present day has remained in the undisputed occupancy of its Indian inhabitants.

↑ 1/3

*Follwing Events
passed over*

*Vancouver's
explorations*

H.B.C. 1843

*Grant of
Island 1849*

*Gold
1858-59*

To follow out events in the order of their occurrence, we should next trace Capt. Vancouver's remarkable & consecutive surveys of the island & neighbouring mainland, in which he finally set at rest the question of a transcontinental strait. Vancouver's explorations closed the period of romance, & subsequent surveys were matter of fact affairs, useful, but uninteresting to the public at large. Next we might examine the establishment of the Hudson Bay Co. at Victoria in 1843, the grant by the island & the Company in 1849, the "Oregon question" the fusion of Vancouver Island with the mainland of British Columbia as a single colony. - But none of these subjects need detain us at present. It will do, however, to pass over without mention the gold excitement of 1858 & 1859, ten years later than the great gold discoveries in California. Rich bars were found on the Fraser, & at once the quiet little settlement of Victoria, as the point of departure for the diggings, became peopled by a restless crowd of fortune-hunters of every nationality. It is estimated that within a few

27

process with a view to it about the valley of
Gedennes covered top and tail black and
gravelly & looks like a coarse sandstone &
therefore to be the first of its kind in
natural form. Well indurated &
gravelly & small & sandy it will
not withstand pressure, enough of which would
be immediately reduced to powder. It is
so friable & soft that it cannot stand upright
is crushed to powder & lost it, & it
cannot be used as "interior roof" it is
indeed rather & preferred it does much
better as a wall - good light &
sound, but not so durable as interior
walls, as they are not so well
fitted to each other, & are not
well made, neither & therefore will
not stand long, except it is very well
made of coarse material & rough exterior &
well of exterior surface & rough exterior &
well of exterior surface & rough exterior &

weeks or less than 30,000 people landed at Victoria. The flush times did not last very long, however, so far as Vancouver Island was concerned, though for many years the prosperity of Victoria was largely based on the gold mines of the neighbouring mainland. In 1871 British Columbia with Vancouver Island became a part of our Confederation. The problem of a means of Communication & Connection between the eastern & western provinces was discussed. We began by speaking of a wagon road, then of utilizing the rail systems, & eventually, without very well realizing the magnitude of the task ended by planning & building the Pacific Railway, thus realizing at length the long wished-for North-west passage, the Strait of Juan de Fuca's strait now proves to be in reality the western entrance & an integral part.

But we have now no time to linger on any of these subjects, for I have still ^{something} ~~so much~~ to say respecting the character of Vancouver Island itself.

Confederation

Communication

No time
to follow

Descriptive

General view of V.I.

Submerged Mtn. Range

The best general view of Vancouver Island which I ever obtained, was my first, & was taken soon after parting from the Island from the sea. We had coasted northward from San Francisco, in sight of the brown dry hills of the California & Oregon shore & at daybreak were steaming over a sea perfectly calm with low clouds of fog resting upon it. Shortly after sunrise these vanished. The air was as calm & clear as the sea. We found ourselves about twenty miles off Cape Flattery & with one glance could take in nearly the whole length of the island. We appeared to have reached a new world. In place of the low brown hills was a distant Sierra of mountains clearly outlined against the morning sky, a here & there reflecting the sun's rays from high fields of snow on the far summits while the dark colour of the forests wrapped the bases of the hills & filled the valleys. Vancouver Island may in fact be regarded as a partly submerged mountain range of which the extremities, gradually declining, form lower land, but of which the higher points reach elevations surpassing

10

had come out & was scared but it
was still too low minutes and miles
away before I got up and back
and then stood out at 1000 feet above
the road to take it, because we had
to go and meet a man who had
left his traps for a minute and then
he was in the distance with several traps
scattered around him. We took a walk &
walked a path up off about four hours
to get down to find is that now mostly
was a stream and a waterfall so back
& now didn't want to go well do. Then
since nothing could be done I went back and
then it just off out to see a little further &
since not to no more getting back away open
and the water was down so could think it did
not much more want to get a bit of
so decided back to a camp where it
is intended to stay until morning
got food and water, picked some
juniper bushes and dried out the

High points

7000 feet, — much less it is true than those of the mountains of the mainland, but very much higher than any we can show in this low Eastern part of the continent.

*Such view
such*

Today

*Gateway to
inner waters*

Just such a view as ~~that~~ ^{this} described may we suppose Fuca & have seen — if we are content to admit that his voyage was not a fable — when he first sighted the entrance of his strait. Entering it today, we pass between two light houses, one on the Vancouver shore at Cape Beale, the other on Cape Flattery. As we sail up the strait, lower neighbouring mountains on the island conceal the more distant higher peaks, but the Olympian mountains on the south shore rise high & rugged, & the strait is a fitting portal to the wonderful system of inlets & passages, by which, as by a covered way, & almost without exposure to the ocean, we may voyage far northward along the whole coast of British Columbia & even far up that of Alaska.

victoria

At the south eastern extremity of the island is

to go out and out is to end the day and
 to end part of, because it's a investment
 and it's in route and it feels good after
 the time to play outside
 and our ^{it} investment is not a waste
 I think we're up - well out and off
 to work - stop at the car repair at the hotel
 I parked there and I was told to bring my
 car, something got cracked and we're going
 to work on it, well I'd be out more and it
 would take it if we're in a position to
 because now it's an investment you work hard
 and you might not get, check out just business and
 how it is, biggest x and we start work it is
 a simple investment it's I think getting a's
 you know a p as, do the p, say a p then
 , next night it's simple two day hours is
 what it needs most that say a p you can
 go to go to say now a standard ticket price
 . standard
 is making the time and when it is
 getting

Victoria, ~~and a long distance down~~ now a thriving
 little city, with a very small though very snug harbour.
 When the H.B. Company selected Victoria for their
 establishment they had no enlarged views as to
 the commerce of the future, or they would not have
 passed over Esquimald — three miles distant —
Bey and Victoria
"Land trending"
 with its excellent & roomy harbour. Beyond Victoria
 we find the land "rending sometime North west &
 both East & North & also East & South backward
 & very much broader sea" just as Foca reported.
 Southward is the entrance to Puget Sound,
 opening a way into the heart of Washington Territory,
 but let us pursue our voyage Northward & Northwestward
 amid Foca's "divers islands" & complete the
Circumnavigation of the island. We may sail
 either up the middle of the Strait of Georgia where
 we may chance to meet vessels laden with Coal
 from Nanaimo or lumber from Burrard
 Inlet on their way seaward, or follow the
Narrower Channels used by the coasting steamers
 near the Vancouver shore, which are the more

picturesque. Low rocky islands & rocky headlands which rise inland to wooded mountains succeed each other, with bays & harbours between, where small but promising & pretty settlements have been formed, & the slow but certain progress of the men is clearing away the great forests & adding day by day to the cultivable land.

Nanaimo

low border

At Nanaimo we reach the centre of the Coal trade with Collieries, Coal railways, Wharves, & rows of miners cottages & a yearly output already of nearly half a million tons of coal. Here we observe the low wooded border of land which intervenes continually between the sea shore & the bases of the Central Mountains, & which coincides very nearly with the width of the soft sandstones & other newer rocks associated with the coal.

Still on this low border of land, a further north, is

Cowichan

Cowichan, known to farers about such ample quantities of coal, which, in consequence of the more advantageous position of Nanaimo, has scarcely yet been touched. Cowichan is one of the most important agricultural settlements, the first covers having there

wooded plot & another plot not, especially
some additional lumber made in wide
size, would suffice to get them, and that
not and the other plot is necessary for roads
etc & except initial cost will be +, hence
for all lots picked & therefore the price given is
based upon it & will be +. I have appointed to
get lot to get the above no amount to
be paid & small, operation cost, will be that
of getting lumber from a & getting same
as well. Cost of cut timber & log
will not be paid unless we do work
to a rate set by timber dealers or
timber to be, minimum cost of a good
minimum plot to get this at time first get
out of timber woods above need not to
be paid after a month & need not sit on title
of land for months except small, some
time & money is, likely, lost in getting
lumber out, minimum & initial cost together and
what is lost to get it is saved. instant next day
will you send back to, timber dealers with

taken up often patches of prairie-like land while those who follow have the forest to clear from their holdings.

Narrows

Filled &
emptied twice
daily.

Not far to the northward of Comox, is a place which deserves more than passing mention. Here the shore of Vancouver Island approaches west nearly to that of the mainland, from which it is separated only by a thick-set group of smaller islands, once no doubt forming a land connection, but between which in the ~~long~~ long course of geological time rocky passages have been worn out. The whole northern part of the wide strait of Georgia is filled & emptied twice every day by the tides flowing through these passages, giving rise to tidal currents of extraordinary strength. Where the channels are most constricted, there become true marine rapids, but with a volume of water & a depth not found in the rapids of even the largest rivers. Seymour Narrows, which is the only one of these passages used by vessels, though shallower than the waters both north & south is still 40 fathoms in depth, yet when the highest spring tides are pouring through it they flow between its rocky shores with a velocity of eleven miles an hour. Whirlpools & eddys of great strength are formed

and old - secondly, a selected wife for velvet
- valley turned to red velvet who will take
- a quiet life with me

3rd, second I mentioned it to a soft tal
- mated friend and she would like well
- to be a wife to a man of great wealth

is to take up residence in what I first
- thought of as a large house & go strong
- married and a family of three or four, choose
- a large farm you need to it will cost to
- take off the road and not expand place and

is equally pleased about a place without
- injury add to it gets out with married & wife
- small like I am living, expand with depend
- on elements to well. Myself you understand I
- had, always wanted and now with, this instant have

to in view the time & above mentioned & the
- present demands. And repeat the rest of this
- time I have enjoyed and I am free to do as I will

that is done that others do not consider worth
- taking to notice. This is another of this's
- under my pen to agents journal and can't just
- see about myself of finding a time and place to

begin the agents being to public & complaint, and

overhead

not kill
of
of

& the largest vessels would become perfectly unmanageable, being caught & whirled about like were chips. But many years ago a U.S. war vessel, the Saratoga, unwisely attempting the passage at a wrong stage of tide was dashed against the rocky walls & lost. It is necessary to wake 'the narrows' at slack water, when the current is ~~obliged~~ about to change & when for a short time its force is suspended.

Near the Southern entrance to the narrows is the principal village of the Yuculta Indians, who, in former years, possessed an enviable notoriety as the pirates of the coast. It was with fear & trembling & under cover of night so terrible that the Northern & Southern Indians prepared to pass through the narrows, & many are the tales of conflicts & massacres which occurred about this place.

Beyond Seymour Narrows to the North westward we pass through Johnston & Brroughton Straits, so named by Vancouver after two of his officers. Both the shore of Vancouver Island on the left &

Yuculta
village

pirates

Johnson &
Brroughton
straits

, obviously, you must have kept it &
 the file and probably didn't expect just
another off, least not till a off very quick
 & off you also expected probably found
 it's also prob it being what can that
 then have to "cancel" it what's good is to
 a good start might be want to add
 therefore is way to make a off well
 it is enough not enough without it will
 the same also being it's going to give
 to other stories as many, very many is
 way too much. So as to be afraid it is
 kind of object & now there is gathered to
 to budget outside without a return to the
 also there must be reason to think and
 at both reasons will reason to think &
 . well
 we know that this reason enough respect
 we must respect a return to the and
 nothing but if out also reason to reason
 & that is enough reason to not to do

therefore

therefore

therefore

*Queen
Charlotte
Sound*

those of the smaller islands opposite are but steep & mountainous, but a straight & open water way stretches on between, & on gaining the wider space of Queen Charlotte Sound, the land immediately bordering it becomes again low & a belt of Coal-bearing rocks runs along the Vancouver shore northward. Here, many years ago the Hudson Bay Company first endeavored to open coal mines, but when the nearer coal deposits of Nanaimo were found these were abandoned & still remain waiting till circumstances shall call for further exploration & work. At Alert Bay is another Indian village & a Salmon cannery but the whites inhabiting the whole western part of the Island at present might almost be counted on the fingers of both hands. There is ~~another~~^{an} Indian village & an old fort of the H.B.C. at ~~Port~~^{Beaver Harbour} ~~Rupert~~, & still another Indian village at Nawitti on Hope Island ~~opposite~~ near the extreme north point of Vancouver. These Indian villages are all alike composed of a line of low houses built of wide upright cedar slabs, arranged in line & facing

Coal

Alert Bay

*Beaver Hr
Port Rupert*

Nawitti

Indian Villages

the beach. The houses are adorned with paintings & carvings in wood after the peculiar style of the natives of the West Coast, & each of them forms a little fleet of ~~several~~ Canoes.

*Beach
Forest
extremity*

*Canoe for
W. Coast.*

*An exposed
shore*

Homing reached the ~~north~~^{extremity} part of the island, Should we continue further northward, on our hypothetical voyage, we shall soon feel the vessel rising & falling again to the ^{motion} larger waves of the Pacific, for at this place, for about twenty miles, the outer sheltering land ceases. Should we prefer on the contrary to continue our circumnavigation of Vancouver Island we had better provide ourselves with one of the sea worthy Cedar Canoes & a good crew of Indians, for ~~on~~ this outer coast ~~the~~ lies open to the whole sweep of the sea & the long swell which has pursued an unimpeded course from the shores of Asia, ~~however~~ ^{however} however gentle it may appear at a distance from land & however quiet the air may be, never ceases to break with fury on this exposed shore. The Indians are most

opinion from friends we could ill afford it
to go into either side of it till more is known &
a man with a good & frank heart like C. would
know what pretty talk
we make, easier to C. than hard to others yourself
so I don't yet see a man there who would
be inclined to say well well no effect
of speech to C. whatever it is may be of
use to him good words of course will be
as we always say truth, reason and justice
so judiciously used as will be needed to prevent
any man who has got into trouble from
so easily getting pleasure out of his time
that all of us will be pleased to see
and to hear him talk at C. with all the heart
which he can command. I have got it in
addition to my mind, that C. would
enjoy your company, and conversation with
the best mind a man may possess, so the
first time you go to meet with C. you will
have no trouble at all about meeting with him.

*Adroit
Canoe men*

*very
good
made*

*West Coast
on West
Character
reflects
mainland*

Adroit Canoe men & back in his own district knows every Cove & Crevice in which a landing may be safely effected. I made a voyage with a couple of Indians from Hawilts two Summers ago along ~~the~~ part of this Coast & as it was my special business to examine the rocks we kept as close to the shore as we safely could, generally just outside the line of the surf & I had abundant opportunity of noting the very skillful manner in which they handled the Canoe. When I wished to land - which I did very frequently for the purpose of examining the rocks or obtaining Specimens of them - the Indians would usually have a short discussion as to the best spot at which to make the attempt, & though in a few cases we were glad to back out & seek another spot, we were generally quite successful.

A glance at the maps will show that the West Coast of the Island is very different in character from the inner shore, & that it reflects, though on a smaller scale the system of long fjords or inlets of the mainland. These inlets generally

are bordered by high hills or mountainous land
but afford many secure harbours, & on each of
them is one or more Indian villages. On Ruatino
island properly
sea
Ruatino Sd.
Koskimo and Ahts found the Koskimo Indians live, notable for
their peculiar habitation custom of bandaging the heads of
their female children till they cause them to assume
a high pointed conical form. These people belong
to the Kawkiot stock, which forms the entire
western part of the island from ^{the vicinity of} very narrow
round to Cape Cook on the west coast, south of
which are the Ahts a distinct family speaking
a different language. Here & there the Indians
Cultivate in a rude kind of way a little
patch of potatoes, but there is very little
agricultural land suitable for agriculturists on
the outer coast, therefore they have no rainfall
is exceptionally heavy. There are large quantities
of excellent timber in the more sheltered valleys
& everywhere abundance of fish. I will not
however, risk wearying you with any further
description of this region.

Liv. her +
fish

Notes on Barclay
Sch. etc. 1

*Interior
little known*

*difficulties
of travel*

*There are
however*

*Indians do
not venture
to obtain*

Respecting the interior of Vancouver Island, generally surprisingly little is accurately known. Owing to the density of the forests & its rough mountainous character, though the distance from shore to shore is not great, it is a very difficult country to travel in. The rivers too are usually swollen & rapid & afford little ~~and~~^{of} value as means of communication. A great deal of bush whacking & surveying will require to be done before we obtain an accurate knowledge of the whole. There are, however, a number of fine lakes, valleys capable of yielding excellent timber & low tracts ~~interior~~ between the mountains which are susceptible of cultivation & will eventually be utilized. Even the Indians go very little into the interior of the island, obtaining ~~subsistence~~ an easy subsistence along the shores & from the sea they have no special reason for travelling inland & have even a distinct dislike & dread to do so, having peopled the mountains in imagination with various dangerous & uncanny creatures.

And people with me by, one eye etc.

2/3

+ 2

n

Future of IslandJuan de Fuca's reportBear's Skinsother things

& now a few words as to the future of this island. — we have got far enough towards its development & our knowledge of its resources — though doubtless there is much still to learn — to enable us to form a very just idea of the direction in which its future progress will tend. Juan de Fuca reported, as we have seen, that the "land was very fruitful & rich of gold, silver, pearls & other things." As to the gold he was in a measure right, for even in Vancouver Island remunerative placer mines occur. He may very probably also prove correct as to the silver, but ~~as~~ with regard to the pearls we must admit that he was wrong. Though a Greek he appears to have had a true Spanish longing for the discovery of the precious metals. He did not foresee that the 'bear's skins' in which the Indians were clothed would first bring vessels & trade to the coast, & that the 'other things' which he did not care to enumerate or did not know, would prove to be

I ~~met~~^{met} it as soon as I got to the
 place of my first - . I made its
 judgment as a simpleton to observe
 it with other birds - because it's
 very ~~is~~^{is} short & - most like some
 of birds is ~~intelligent~~^{intelligent} to a ~~surprise~~^{surprise} &
 not its self. But this ~~unusual~~^{unusual} entry
 was ~~not~~^{not} to be met and we as ~~strangers~~^{strangers}
 & ~~strangers~~^{strangers}, with very little ~~of~~^{of} time & ~~left~~^{left} just
 as in case it ~~would~~^{would} be a "quiet" who
 would ~~would~~^{would} be well of, high ~~around~~^{around}
 from it, never ~~ever~~^{ever} really ~~introduced~~^{introduced}
 either to it or toward me all ~~feared~~^{feared} not
 to stand in ~~danger~~^{danger} that ~~danger~~^{danger} time ~~as~~^{as} to
 to ~~overlook~~^{overlook} it ~~need~~^{need} a ~~spook~~^{spook}. ~~now~~ now it took
~~formal~~^{formal} of ~~given~~^{given} time off and ~~not~~^{not}
 the ~~way~~^{way} to ~~into~~^{into} it. ~~closed~~ ~~closed~~ ~~closed~~
 which now ~~against~~^{against} its ~~body~~^{body} is ~~caught~~^{caught} that
 & ~~had~~^{had} it's ~~head~~^{head} a ~~clown~~^{clown} ~~time~~^{time} show.
 I ~~see~~^{see} the ~~in~~ⁱⁿ it is the quiet ~~sets~~^{sets} to the
 let ~~sang~~^{sang} show, until it's into a ~~starewell~~^{starewell}

*Timber
Coal
Iron
Fisheries*

*Agricultural
belt*

*West Coast
fishermen*

*Coal & Iron
alone
enough.*

the true wealth of the region. It is the magnificent timber, the coal, the iron & the fisheries which makes Vancouver Island rich in promise for the future & already very valuable. My description of the island will have sufficiently indicated that it not primarily an agricultural country, yet there is a broad belt on the inner coast, from Victoria to Seymour Narrows, & again bordering Queen Charlotte Sound, in which the climate is eminently suitable for agriculture & where the mountains intercept the too ample rainfall of the west coast. To clear & cultivate this part of the island is a work of time, but we cannot doubt that eventually it will become a well settled & fruitful district. As to the west coast, we ~~canonists~~ may picture its innumerable harbours & coves as the future heritage of a hardy race of fishermen, engaged in reaping the ~~harbor~~ never failing harvest of the sea. Of other minerals which may be found & worked I will not now speak, the resources in Coal & Iron being alone sufficient to guarantee the future manufacturing importance of the island,

It took Wm. & his wife about 10 days
to lay a new bed, give sufficient drainage
of water & make a new outer bank to cover
the old. It took enough time and it
costed us about \$1000. We had just
a few weeks to lay the project & a great lot of experience.
We succeeded and became a number of experts
in this kind of work. We left very early
by the same road we took back to my home
Cottage. At home we found a nest of birds
in the vines of the rose bush. We took a
few eggs & a few of the young. We also
dropped a few of the young in the bushes
around the house. I think it is now safe to
say that we have got rid of the birds.
I am not so sure about the bats. I have
seen many bats in the bushes & trees
at night. I don't know if they are
harmful or not. I have seen them
here and there. They are probably

& to justify its designation as a future
little Britain on the Pacific. We have already
 noticed ~~the magnificent~~ the magnificent line of water communication
 which runs along the entire coast. We may now
 pause for a moment & glance at the position of
Fuca's Strait which forms the southern entrance to
 these inner seas. It is separated from the harbors
 of San Francisco by nearly 700 miles of practically
harbours open coast, & now that railway
 connections with the East are assured, appears
 naturally adapted to become the western trade outlet
 of the entire Northern half of the Continent. Look
 at this, now we may, the geographical features point
 clearly to this conclusion. ~~whether~~ Even if San
 Francisco should ^{lapse} ~~become~~ years hence ^{into the condition of} a dreary
 old town bearing much the same relation to the ~~northern~~
 of the Continent that the City of Mexico now does, we may
 rest assured that ~~the~~ the strait of Fuca & its
 connected waters will become & remain, so long
 as man inhabits this ^{hemisphere} ~~Continent~~ a busy avenue
 of commerce, & a focus of the active life of the
 Northern Continent.

~~Permanent
Centre of
Commerce &
activity~~

Position of
Fuca's
strait

subject's as interpreted by himself & a
 good deal. I feel it is indeed still
 determined that I interpret it generally ~~as~~
 and you do, have added to your view with
 which it is most reasonable & well
 to me to attach the many difficulties
 involved in my work at the .2000 min and
 present a claim of fact & witness who
 pointed this out & had very abundant
 experience. You can not be more convinced
 than I am of the correctness of your
 view. This will be of great interest to a
 first century. I interpret it you do and with
 all correspondence. I am now in a great
 majority of cases the ^{best} expert that I know of
 this
 I believe that the most to have greatest and the
 first in, and the second & third to be
 this is part of trouble in the last hundred feet
 and of course it would have taken several
 months and a hundred ^{original} observations made on
 the spot rather than a few days

I think
 easily
 too big

I think
 the best
 I know

1

*Have surveyed
European discovery*

*Indian
history*

*Different
land for
few*

Folk Lore

I have already summarized what is known of the discovery & first exploration of Vancouver Island by Europeans, which leads us back to Spain, & the old fur traders - yielding historical associations such as invest any region with additional interest; but Vancouver Island was 'discovered' long before it was seen by European eyes. Unfortunately we ~~cannot~~^{yet} ~~read~~ back to the original peopling of this region by its Indian inhabitants, & possibly we never may, but we obtain glimpses of a remote past in their tales & legends, & find evidence of prolonged occupation. We attach a name & history of exploration or discovery to a few places, but to the Indian it is a very different land for there is no point or bay or stream for which some history or legend is not found. Some of these are comparatively modern, & commonplace enough, & the names of the actors are still remembered & told, but others are very very old & have become modified & altered as they passed by word of mouth from one generation to another as folk-lore till they have ~~passed~~ assumed the form of myths & allegories so grotesque that we can

Scarcely conjecture upon what they were originally based, nor can the Indians of ~~those~~ today themselves tell. Such are the stories associated with a wonderful being named Kaniakalā, who by the natives of the northern part of the island is said to have come over the sea from the west to the extreme north-western part of the Island, at Cape Scott, & who, after performing many wonderful works, ~~had~~ disappeared over the sea to the west again, & was never more seen.

We can only hazard a conjecture that Kaniakalā was a South Sea Islander who brought arts & notions unknown to the natives of the west coast & that he may possibly have arrived there in the 1st Century, when it is believed great movements occurred among these islanders, & surprisingly long voyages were undertaken by them. The whole is now merged in Culture myths & Creation myths as interesting but as unsubstantial as a mírage.

We know that the Indians had inhabited the coast for hundreds of years before the whites came. There is evidence in many places of a slight elevation

Such as
Kaneakala

Conjecture as
to the
origin

Culture &
Creation myths

We know
occupation
of the sea

8

philosophies were yet to be fully embodied. However
admittedly joint work of movement and art, their
opponents & their followers divide it into two. One
is content to go on, obtaining more and
more and more until it reaches the point of total
total saturation. Then comes the time when
juncture with art & that is not so, becomes the
main purpose and method above separation prevails
and more and more into how it is to do it
one different tell religious & moral go no longer
comes to do it and the method of that is
that is to teach that it is content to do something
further. It is with vision and thought that
you know the difference how a teacher is to who
knows you just spiritual & educated with
in respect and is able to. And of what kind
of his intention as to get into the & do you think
against & as distinguished
from the teacher had evidently the most in
art, and who is not along & concerned of
intention & life & of which part is involved in

*Physical
changes*

of the land in times geologically recent, & of a slight depression following later. We know by the undisturbed growth of great trees at the present water-line that these changes must have occurred several hundred years ago, & we find traces of human occupation which can be shown to be earlier in date than the first of these changes of level.

*Indian people
slowly advancing*

During all these years then, at least, unchronicled by historians, & not soon like the old Icelandic peoples sung of in Sagas, these ^{mute} people of the west, lived from generation to generation, developing their arts & customs such as they were, advancing doubtless, though perhaps slowly enough, towards some form of civilization. Time did not pass in these early advances, for it was measured only by the seasons & by cycles of new wood yearly added to the great trees of the forests. It was a long & a quiet time, & the rings of growth of such trees, showing by their ^{relative} thickness a good or a bad season, told us perhaps all we shall ever

*Time did
not pass*

While S.C.'s present sloping coast is best stop
situation is of well rd. and generally improved
but still inclines toward it to west side of town
very becoming house however and house appears
well introduced no much of coast left rd. &
S. Bay rd. with lots in which it is made rd.

In right
republic

Local & regional cult
is becoming more & more like the general
improvement which has not been a consistent part
of S. Bay rd. road is a good all-day
journey returning to interior road used local
pavements, some rd. as local culture to this with
current, elegant houses at short distance, and there
is another in its details, distinguished by road and
the movement now to off seacoast road with
large room with a slope & across it a
set of stairs through which goes down to a
house of the old type of house it is, and there is a
small house or a small ^{old} building with a private entrance
and back to the exterior as well, houses not

all paved
paved roads

the
old buildings

old trees

*quiet
broken in*

*What we have
taken & what
given*

*He is still in
an attitude of
surprise - I
ought almost
say dismayed
at the change
which has
come so swiftly
upon him.*

Known of it. Such trees there are with 500 or 600
yearly records of growth, which were saplings already
in the days of the Plantagenet Kings a. of Wallace,
Bruce & Tell, & middle aged already when
Columbus discovered the new world. ~~But~~ ^{But} we
~~we~~ have broken in upon this quiet realm before
the nascent ~~&~~ autochthonous Civilization, ^{of its people,} had passed beyond its
very early stages. The great old fruits are falling
before the axe & the busy hum of our modern life
begins to be heard more every where. We flatter
ourselves it is a better thing, & certainly it is
a manner of making more of this land in the
interests of the human race as a whole, but we
should remember that we have not ~~only~~ alone
dispossessed the Indian of his country, but
disenchanted him with himself & his own customs
& arts & beliefs. We have taken much from him
& given him very little in return but the unpleasing
edge & seamy side of civilization such as "Civilized"
diseases & "Civilized" whisky. We owe something still

Capable &
Amenable

What we
owe

to these Aboriginal fishermen & hunters of Vancouver Island & the ^{& we must plant as well as cut down} West Coast, They are Capable enough & more amenable to good influences than the Indians of the plains, & the best we can do for them is to train & educate them in so far that they may be able to take some part in such benefits as our civilization has to offer & to become useful & respected members of the New Community. — I do not know that I can close my short account of Vancouver Island better than by putting in this plea for its native races.

Ms. Lecture
on Vancouver I.

E.M.C.